
 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

COMMITTEE MEETING  

~ MINUTES ~  

 Wednesday, September 10, 2025 3:00 PM Sullivan Chamber 

City of Cambridge Last Updated: 9/24/2025 3:10 PM cambridgema.gov  

 The Public Safety Committee will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, September 10, 2025 to 

discuss COF 2025 #106, including questions that were submitted by City Council members 

regarding an incident at 243 Broadway on August 2, 2025 and the public safety response. 

Attendee Name Present Absent Late Arrived 

Marc C. McGovern     

Sumbul Siddiqui     

Paul F. Toner     

Ayesha M. Wilson     

Catherine Zusy     

 

At the request of the Chair, Clerk of Committees Erwin called the roll. 

Vice Mayor McGovern – Present/In Sullivan Chamber 

Councillor Siddiqui – Present/In Sullivan Chamber 

Councillor Toner – Absent 

Councillor Wilson – Present/In Sullivan Chamber 

Councillor Zusy – Present/In Sullivan Chamber 

Present – 4, Absent – 1. Quorum established. 

 

Councillor Wilson offered opening remarks and noted that the Call of the meeting was to discuss COF 2025 

#106, including questions that were submitted by City Council members regarding an incident at 243 Broadway 

on August 2, 2025 and the public safety response. Present at the meeting from the Cambridge Police 

Department (CPD) were Police Commissioner, Christine Elow, Superintendent, Frederick Cabral, Deputy 

Superintendent, John Boyle, Deputy Superintendent, Buckowe Yam, Director of Clinical Support Services, Dr. 

James Barrett, and Public Information Officer, Sergeant Robert Reardon. Also present were City Manager, Yi-

An Huang, City Solicitor Megan Bayer, and Deputy Chief Operating Officer, Rebecca Fuentes. Present from 

the CARE Team was Interim Director, Marie Mathieu and Community Partnerships and Engagment Manager, 

Kara Blue. Councillor Sobrinho-Wheeler, Councillor Azeem, and Mayor Simmons were present via Zoom and 

Councillor Nolan was present in the Sullivan Chamber. Councillor Wilson noted that District Attorney, Marian 

Ryan, was also present via Zoom. 

 

Councillor Wilson recognized Commissioner Elow who offered opening remarks and provided a brief overview 

of the incident at 243 Broadway. 

 

Councillor Wilson recognized Sergeant Reardon who gave a presentation titled “Cambridge Police Department 

243 Broadway Incident Review”. The presentation was provided in advance of the meeting and included in the 

Agenda Packet. In addition to the presentation, CPD also provided in advance a document in response to COF 

2025 #106 and CPD Policy Number 46-2, Active Threats. 

 

Councillor Wilson recognized District Attorney Ryan who shared that CPD did a good job providing an 

overview of what happened on August 2, 2025, noting that it was a very difficult situation. 

 

Councillor Wilson recognized Marie Mathieu who shared that there is always room for continued conversation 

and agreed CPD was in a very complicated situation with all parties involved. Marie Mathieu highlighted that 

with continued conversations and collaborations with CPD, there could be an opportunity in the future for the 

CARE team to be deployed to a situation similar to this to utilize the tools and tactics they are trained to do. 



Minutes Public Safety Committee September 10, 2025 

City of Cambridge Page 2 cambridgema.gov  

 

Councillor Wilson recognized City Manager Huang who thanked the Chair for holding the meeting and 

reflected on the many challenges in policing. City Manager Huang noted that this was the first major event 

where body cameras were used since their implementation and would be able to provide additional information 

when they are reviewed. City Manager Huang thanked CPD for their transparency and highlighted how they are 

open to learn from this incident.  

 

Councillor Wilson opened Public Comment. 

 

Andrew Marx, 66 Reed Street, Cambridge MA, offered comments related to people experiencing a mental 

health crisis. 

 

Corinne, Central Square, spoke against the actions taken by CPD on August 2, 2025. 

 

Katherine Silvestre, 253 Norfolk Street, Cambridge, MA, spoke against the actions taken by CPD on August 2, 

2025. 

 

Linden Jenkins, 150 Erie Street, Cambridge, MA, urged the City to provide more resources and training for the 

CARE Team.  

 

Lee Farris, 269 Norfolk Street, Cambridge, MA, spoke on the importance of engaging with residents and 

neighbors while a situation such as this unfolds. 

 

Robert Winters, Cambridge, MA, spoke in strong support of the actions taken by CPD on August 2, 2025.  

 

Bill Cunningham spoke on a previous Resolution which brought together multiple local agencies to be familiar 

with various developments throughout the city. 

 

Councillor Wilson recognized Councillor Zusy who asked why CPD did not allow the individual to calm down, 

possibly overnight, before deploying OC Spray, noting this would have also allowed more time for residents to 

exit the building safely. Commissioner Elow shared that the Department learned that the individual was 

involved in a serious incident days earlier, which is why immediate action was necessary. Deputy 

Superintendent Yam added that the individual had already harmed community members and was a risk to 

neighbors if the situation escalated further. Deputy Superintendent highlighted that CPD maintained dialogue 

and continued to monitor the individual from outside the building. Councillor Zusy shared that OC Spray 

should remain a useful nonlethal option for the Department and added that it is important to review what other 

alternative tools could be used. Councillor Wilson pointed out that the individual had a weapon, had already 

injured someone, and was running through the community, and agreed waiting would be a serious risk. Deputy 

Superintendent Yam added that there were concerns about the individual staying inside the apartment, and 

explained that communication with him never stopped, sharing that the goal was a safe surrender. 

 

Councillor Wilson recognized Councillor Siddiqui who asked if there was ever a mental health professional on 

site during the incident. Commissioner Elow shared there was not. Councillor Siddiqui asked if not using a 

clinician in this situation was being reviewed. Commissioner Elow explained that there have been internal 

conversations and pointed out that custody of the individual was the goal, which is why crisis negotiators were 

being utilized instead of clinicians. Superintendent Cabral added that if clinicians were brought in, based on this 

situation, it would have needed to be someone who already had a relationship with the individual. Chair Wilson 

asked what kind of situation would be appropriate to bring in a clinician if this one was not. Superintendent 

Cabral provided examples of when it could be appropriate. Dr. Barrett also responded and explained why this 

situation was not a situation for a mental health evaluation. Councillor Siddiqui urged the Department to re-

evaluate the use of clinicians, noting that all possible tools should be considered.  

 

Councillor Wilson recognized Vice Mayor McGovern who shared that if a mental health professional were on 

scene they could have helped CPD with negotiations and urged the City to work towards the CARE Team 

providing more coverage. The Vice Mayor noted that social workers cannot always deescalate a situation and 

emphasized the importance of scene safety for social workers who do arrive to incidents. The Vice Mayor 



Minutes Public Safety Committee September 10, 2025 

City of Cambridge Page 3 cambridgema.gov  

questioned why the entire building was not evacuated and why residents were not given more support once they 

were evacuated. Commissioner Elow agreed that in future similar situations a full evacuation should be done. 

The Vice Mayor asked what support was provided to the evacuated residents, such as food and shelter. Chair 

Wilson added it would be important to know what City staff were also on scene assisting the community. City 

Manager Huang shared that Maura Pensak, Housing Liaison, was available to help residents and pointed out 

that there were many factors involved in real time, which made it difficult to understand which support was 

going to be needed. Superintendent Cabral shared that pizza was provided, and hotel rooms were arranged for 

those who wanted them, and residents were allowed to go back into the building for essentials. Vice Mayor 

McGovern pointed out that animals should be considered when doing evacuations. The Vice Mayor urged CPD 

to provide outreach and follow ups with residents to further explain the situation and why certain decisions were 

made. 

 

Councillor Wilson recognized Councillor Sobrinho-Wheeler who asked for clarification on what type of 

chemical agent was deployed into the building, and how many were deployed. Commissioner Elow confirmed 

that OC Pepper Spray inside a container was deployed ten times through a window. Councillor Sobrinho-

Wheeler asked the Commissioner what CPD would do differently if a situation such as this occurred again. 

Commissioner Elow explained how a tactical drone would have been extremely beneficial for this situation and 

provided more situational awareness of the scene to Officers. Additionally, Commissioner Elow and Deputy 

Superintendent Cabral provided examples of less than lethal options that could have benefited the Department. 

Councillor Sobrinho-Wheeler asked if the CARE Team’s involvement was ever a consideration. Commissioner 

Elow shared that they did not believe it was an appropriate time to call the CARE Team because the situation 

involved an armed, violent person, who had already injured people. Councillor Wilson asked if it would have 

been appropriate to call in mental health professionals when the individual was barricaded in his home, alone. 

Commissioner Elow noted that it could be reviewed for the future, but it is also important to ensure the safety of 

all including clinicians. City Manager Huang added that the CARE Team is still a very new Department, 

pointing out that barricaded individuals is a situation that requires careful planning and training. City Manager 

Huang noted that the Crisis Negotiation Team has received specialized training in these situations. The City 

Manager agreed that there should be additional discussions on how clinicians can be incorporated in the future. 

Councillor Sobrinho-Wheeler thanked CPD for acknowledging what did and did not work in this situation and 

asked if they could provide more information on tactics used by the Crisis Negotiation Team. Deputy 

Superintendent Cabral, Superintendent Yam, and Commissioner Elow provided an overview of negotiations and 

how the individual was apprehended without any issues, noting that during the apprehension, Police Officers 

did not have their guns pointed at the individual and there was productive dialogue between the Officers and the 

individual. Councillor Sobrinho-Wheeler asked when body camera footage would be released. Commissioner 

Elow shared it would be released after the court proceedings. 

 

Councillor Wilson recognized Councillor Nolan who thanked CPD staff for their responses to questions and 

concerns. Councillor Nolan agreed with other Councillors about having more discussions related to reviewing 

how clinicians could be engaged sooner in future incidents. Councillor Nolan emphasized the importance of 

providing the right support and tools to community members and residents that were affected during the 

incident. 

 

Councillor Wilson asked for more information on the robot that was used and how it entered the home of the 

individual. Superintendent Yam explained the robot entered through the individual’s home, which he then put a 

towel over it, making it so CPD could no longer use it as a tool. Councillor Wilson asked if the CARE Team 

could provide information on what type of calls they have been responding to. Marie Mathieu shared that the 

CARE Team has been responding to well-being checks, unwanted calls, and low-level psych calls. Marie 

Mathieu noted that the Team is not responding to calls that involve weapons or if there are safety concerns to at 

this time. Councillor Wilson asked CPD in what situations the Co-Response Team would be used for. Dr. 

Barrett explained that the Co-Response Team responds to police calls related to mental health situations and 

will not respond to CARE Team calls if CARE is available. Councillor Wilson pointed out that what she 

believes she is hearing for Councillors and community members is that mental health providers need to be a 

bigger resource that is utilized in crisis situations. 

 

Councillor Wilson and Committee members discussed the possibility of proposing a motion related to 

requesting the City Manager and the Police Department review crisis negotiations protocols and utilizing mental 



Minutes Public Safety Committee September 10, 2025 

City of Cambridge Page 4 cambridgema.gov  

health professionals. The Committee decided to submit a Policy Order related to this on the next City Council 

Agenda. 

 

The Chair, Councillor Wilson recognized Vice Mayor McGovern who made a motion to adjourn the 

meeting. 

Clerk of Committees Erwin called the roll. 

Vice Mayor McGovern – Yes 

Councillor Siddiqui – Yes 

Councillor Toner – Absent 

Councillor Wilson – Yes 

Councillor Zusy – Yes 

Yes – 4, No – 0, Absent – 1. Motion passed. 

 

The Public Safety Committee adjourned at approximately 4:59p.m. 

 

Attachment A – Communications from the public. 

 

Clerk’s Note: The City of Cambridge/22 City View records every City Council meeting and every City Council 

Committee meeting. The video for this meeting can be viewed at: 

https://cambridgema.granicus.com/player/clip/1070?view_id=1&redirect=true 

 

 

 A communication was received from Councillor Jivan Sobrinho-Wheeler, transmitting a 

memorandum regarding share questions and concerns regarding the recent incident at 243 

Broadway involving the Cambridge Police Department on August 2, 2025. 

 A communication was received from Kia Benjamin, Office Manager, Cambridge Police Department, 

transmitting a presentation titled "Cambridge Police Department 243 Broadway Incident Review". 

 A communication was received from Kia Benjamin, Office Manager, Cambridge Police Department, 

transmitting a response to COF 2025 #106. 

 A communication was received from Kia Benjamin, Office Manager, Cambridge Police Department, 

transmitting information on Cambridge Police Department Policy Number 46-2, Active Threats. 

https://cambridgema.granicus.com/player/clip/1070?view_id=1&redirect=true















